

TWENTY-SIXTH DAY

St. Paul, Minnesota, Thursday, March 26, 1981

The Senate met at 11:00 a.m. and was called to order by the President.

Prayer was offered by the Chaplain, Rev. Vernon D. Gundermann.

The roll was called, and the following Senators answered to their names:

Ashbach	Dicklich	Langseth	Peterson, R.W.	Stern
Bang	Dieterich	Lantry	Petty	Stokowski
Belanger	Engler	Lessard	Pillsbury	Stumpf
Benson	Frank	Lindgren	Purfeerst	Taylor
Berg	Frederick	Luther	Ramstad	Tennessee
Berglin	Frederickson	Moe, D.M.	Renneke	Ulland
Bernhagen	Hanson	Moe, R.D.	Rued	Vega
Bertram	Humphrey	Nelson	Schmitz	Waldorf
Brataas	Johnson	Olhoft	Setzepfandt	Wegener
Chmielewski	Knoll	Pehler	Sieloff	Willet
Dahl	Knutson	Penny	Sikorski	
Davies	Kroening	Peterson, C.C.	Solon	
Davis	Kronebusch	Peterson, D.L.	Spear	

The President declared a quorum present.

The reading of the Journal was dispensed with and the Journal, as printed and corrected, was approved.

MEMBERS EXCUSED

Messrs. Hughes, Keefe, Menning and Merriam were excused from the Session of today.

EXECUTIVE AND OFFICIAL COMMUNICATIONS

March 23, 1981

The Honorable Jack Davies
President of the Senate

Dear Sir:

On March 23, 1981, the Subcommittee on Committees met and by appropriate action made the following changes to the appointments appearing in the Journal for March 23, 1981.

Pursuant to Minnesota Statutes 1980

Sec. 1.21-1.22 Great Lakes Commission

Mr. Dieterich, replacing Mr. Waldorf

Sec. 3.29 Senate Committee on Interstate Cooperation

Mr. Humphrey (additional appointee)

Sec. 161.1419 Mississippi River Parkway Commission

Mr. Waldorf, replacing Mr. Nelson

Respectfully,

Roger D. Moe, Chairman
Subcommittee on Committees

MESSAGES FROM THE HOUSE

Mr. President:

I have the honor to announce the passage by the House of the following Senate Files, herewith returned: S. F. Nos. 7 and 8.

Edward A. Burdick, Chief Clerk, House of Representatives

Returned March 23, 1981

Mr. President:

I have the honor to announce that the House has acceded to the request of the Senate for the appointment of a Conference Committee, consisting of five members of the House, on the amendments adopted by the House to the following Senate File:

S. F. No. 366: A bill for an act relating to taxation; providing a new schedule for payment of income taxes withheld from wages; giving temporary rulemaking authority; appropriating money; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 290.92, Subdivision 6.

There has been appointed as such committee on the part of the House:

Jacobs; Anderson, I.; Tomlinson; Sieben, H. and Dempsey.

Senate File No. 366 is herewith returned to the Senate.

Edward A. Burdick, Chief Clerk, House of Representatives

Returned March 23, 1981

Mr. President:

I have the honor to announce the passage by the House of the following House Files, herewith transmitted: H. F. Nos. 189, 269, 330, 410, 432, 91, 277, 395, 436, 462, 434, 521 and 525.

Edward A. Burdick, Chief Clerk, House of Representatives

Transmitted March 23, 1981

FIRST READING OF HOUSE BILLS

The following bills were read the first time and referred to the committees indicated.

H. F. No. 189: A bill for an act relating to governmental operations; pro-

hibiting the use of state government vehicles for nongovernmental functions; prohibiting compensation of employees for use of personal vehicles for nongovernmental purposes; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 16.753.

Referred to the Committee on Governmental Operations.

H. F. No. 269: A bill for an act relating to elections; allowing a candidate to transport parents of the candidate or the candidate's spouse to or from the polls; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 210A.13, Subdivision 3.

Referred to the Committee on Rules and Administration for comparison with S.F. No. 216, now on the Calendar.

H. F. No. 330: A bill for an act relating to Independent School District No. 625; providing for times of election and terms of office; amending Laws 1965, Chapter 705, Section 1, Subdivision 2, as amended.

Referred to the Committee on Rules and Administration for comparison with S. F. No. 262.

H. F. No. 410: A bill for an act relating to public welfare; authorizing the commissioner of public welfare to designate the county of financial responsibility for patients transferred under the Interstate Compact on Mental Health who are not residents of Minnesota; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 245.52.

Referred to the Committee on Health, Welfare and Corrections.

H. F. No. 432: A bill for an act relating to elections; eliminating the party primary ten percent requirement; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Sections 202A.23, Subdivision 2; and 202A.41, Subdivision 2; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 202A.41, Subdivision 3.

Referred to the Committee on Elections and Reapportionment.

H. F. No. 91: A bill for an act relating to public safety; specifying the crime of fleeing from a peace officer by use of a motorized vehicle; providing that whoever flees a peace officer in a motorized vehicle shall be liable for any loss caused by such flight; prescribing penalties; proposing new law coded in Minnesota Statutes, Chapters 65B and 609.

Referred to the Committee on Judiciary.

H. F. No. 277: A bill for an act relating to insurance; broadening the investment authority of township mutual insurance companies; prescribing recordkeeping duties; providing remedies; proposing new law coded in Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 67A; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1980, Sections 67A.23 and 67A.24.

Referred to the Committee on Commerce.

H. F. No. 395: A bill for an act relating to state government; allowing other public employees, as well as spouses of state and other public employees, to participate in state employee van pools under certain circumstances; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 16.756, by adding a subdivision.

Referred to the Committee on Transportation.

H. F. No. 436: A bill for an act relating to financial institutions; setting application fees for industrial loan and thrifts; providing for publication of

notices; establishing procedures for consideration of applications for consent to sell and issue certificates; increasing the minimum amounts for insurance of accounts; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Sections 53.03, Subdivision 1, and by adding subdivisions; and 53.10, Subdivision 1.

Referred to the Committee on Commerce.

H. F. No. 462: A bill for an act relating to commerce; requiring invoices on certain repairs; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Sections 325F.60; and 325F.64.

Referred to the Committee on Commerce.

H. F. No. 434: A bill for an act relating to motor vehicles; increasing the period of time for which number plates may be issued for certain vehicles and adjusting the tax accordingly; providing for the issuance of single dealer plates; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Sections 168.013, Subdivisions 1c and 1e; 168.12, Subdivisions 1 and 2a; 168.27, Subdivisions 16 and 17; 169.79, and 297B.035, Subdivision 2.

Referred to the Committee on Transportation.

H. F. No. 521: A bill for an act relating to transportation; including motels within the specific information signing program; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Sections 160.292; 160.293, Subdivisions 1, 2, and 3; and 160.295, Subdivision 3.

Referred to the Committee on Rules and Administration for comparison with S. F. No. 370, now on General Orders.

H. F. No. 525: A bill for an act relating to agriculture; limiting the applicability and changing the size of county extension committees; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 38.36.

Referred to the Committee on Rules and Administration for comparison with S. F. No. 350, now on General Orders.

REPORTS OF COMMITTEES

Mr. Moe, R.D. moved that the Committee Reports at the Desk be now adopted, with the exception of reports pertaining to appointments. The motion prevailed.

Mr. Stumpf from the Committee on Elections and Reapportionment, to which was referred

S. F. No. 550: A bill for an act relating to education; changing the time period for filing an application to be placed on the ballot for board elections; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 123.32, Subdivision 4.

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the bill do pass. Report adopted.

Mr. Stumpf from the Committee on Elections and Reapportionment, to which was referred

S. F. No. 401: A bill for an act relating to elections; changing certain procedures and the effect of absentee ballots; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 207.05, Subdivision 1; proposing new law coded in Minnesota

Statutes, Chapter 207.

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the bill be amended as follows:

Page 2, line 9, delete "*noon*" and insert "*the close of business*"

Page 2, line 10, before the period, insert "*and two or more election judges from the county selected by the county auditor in accordance with section 204A.18*"

Page 2, line 10, after the period, insert "*The absentee ballots arriving at the office of the county auditor shall be kept in a secure place and shall be counted at the close of business on Thursday in a place open to the public. The absentee ballots shall be received and counted in accordance with section 207.11, except*"

Page 2, line 10 delete "*these absentee*" and insert "*the*"

And when so amended the bill do pass. Amendments adopted. Report adopted.

Mr. Purfeerst from the Committee on Transportation, to which was referred

S. F. No. 699: A bill for an act relating to transportation; authorizing the commissioner of transportation to act as agent for political subdivisions for the construction of roads and bridges under certain circumstances; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 161.36, Subdivision 3.

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the bill do pass. Report adopted.

Mr. Purfeerst from the Committee on Transportation, to which was referred

S. F. No. 525: A bill for an act relating to advertising devices; requiring compensation for removing certain devices; providing for maintenance of areas; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 173.17; proposing new law coded in Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 173.

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the bill be amended as follows:

Page 2, line 32, after "*chapter*" insert "*, including section 173.20*"

Page 3, line 20, after "*not*" insert "*unreasonably obstruct the view*"

Page 3, delete line 21

Page 3, line 22, delete everything before "*of*"

Page 3, line 23, after "*173*" insert "*when placing or maintaining plantings on the right-of-way*"

And when so amended the bill do pass. Amendments adopted. Report adopted.

Mr. Wegener from the Committee on Local Government and Urban Affairs, to which was referred

S. F. No. 536: A bill for an act relating to local government; providing for the board membership and powers of the Moose Lake and Windemere area sanitary sewer district; amending Laws 1974, Chapter 400, Section 3, Sub-

division 12, as amended; and Section 4, Subdivision 2, as amended; repealing Laws 1974, Chapter 400, Section 8, Subdivision 5, as amended.

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the bill do pass. Report adopted.

Mr. Wegener from the Committee on Local Government and Urban Affairs, to which was referred

S. F. No. 788: A bill for an act relating to local government; permitting agreements for compensation for transfers of taxable property in certain annexations; proposing new law coded in Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 414.

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the bill do pass. Report adopted.

Mr. Wegener from the Committee on Local Government and Urban Affairs, to which was re-referred

S. F. No. 558: A bill for an act relating to the city of Robbinsdale; providing that certain tax increment backed bond issues shall be exempt from net debt limits.

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the bill be amended as follows:

Page 1, line 10, delete everything after the comma and insert "*the deductions in*"

Page 1, line 12, before "*the*" insert "*shall include*"

Page 1, line 17, after "*effective*" insert "*upon*"

Page 1, line 17, delete everything after "*day*"

Page 1, delete line 18

Page 1, line 19, delete "*Robbinsdale in*"

And when so amended the bill do pass. Amendments adopted. Report adopted.

Mr. Stumpf from the Committee on Elections and Reapportionment, to which was referred

S. F. No. 639: A bill for an act relating to metropolitan government; requiring that metropolitan council districts be apportioned after the 1980 federal census; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 473.123, Subdivision 2.

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the bill be amended as follows:

Page 1, line 18, delete "*districts*" and insert "*district boundaries*"

Page 1, line 18, delete "*newly apportioned*" and insert "*redrawn*"

Page 1, line 19, after "*census*" insert "*and each federal census thereafter*"

Page 1, line 20, after the period, insert "*The redistricting shall be completed by December 31 in the year of each decade ending in the numeral '2'.*"

Page 1, line 21, delete "*apportioned*" and insert "*drawn*"

Page 1, line 21, before the period insert "*after each redistricting*"

Page 1, line 21, after "Those" insert "*members appointed after the redistricting following the 1980 federal census*"

Page 2, line 1, before the period, insert "*or until a subsequent redistricting. The legislature shall provide for staggered terms of the council members in each subsequent redistricting plan*"

And when so amended the bill do pass. Amendments adopted. Report adopted.

Mr. Stumpf from the Committee on Elections and Reapportionment, to which was referred

S. F. No. 136: A bill for an act relating to elections; changing compensation of certain election judges; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 204A.23.

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the bill do pass. Report adopted.

Mr. Hughes from the Committee on Education, to which was referred

S. F. No. 107: A bill for an act relating to taxation; income tax; providing a credit for contributions to institutions of higher education; proposing new law coded in Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 290.

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the bill do pass and be re-referred to the Committee on Taxes and Tax Laws. Report adopted.

Mr. Hughes from the Committee on Education, to which was re-referred

S. F. No. 262: A bill for an act relating to Independent School District No. 625; providing for times of election and terms of office; amending Laws 1965, Chapter 705, Section 1, Subdivision 2, as amended.

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the bill do pass and be placed on the Consent Calendar. Report adopted.

Mr. Hughes from the Committee on Education, to which was referred

S. F. No. 527: A bill for an act relating to education; specifying the authority of a school board for selection and employment of a superintendent; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 123.34, Subdivision 9.

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the bill do pass. Report adopted.

Mr. Solon from the Committee on Health, Welfare and Corrections, to which was referred

S. F. No. 110: A bill for an act relating to health maintenance organizations; declaring legislative intent and public policy favoring childbirth over abortion; eliminating any requirements that health maintenance organizations provide elective, induced abortions; requiring the organizations to notify enrollees if elective, induced abortions are added to or eliminated from coverage; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Sections 62D.01, by adding a subdivision; 62D.02, Subdivision 7; 62D.07, Subdivision 4; 62D.20; and 62D.22, Subdivision 5.

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the bill be amended as

follows:

Page 1, delete section 1.

Page 2, lines 2, 23, and 27, after "organization" insert "affiliated with a religious hospital or institution"

Page 2, delete section 3

Page 2, line 35, delete "health or"

Page 3, after line 3, insert:

"Sec. 4. [EFFECTIVE DATE.]

Application of sections 1 to 3 is effective for all health maintenance organization contracts issued or renewed after August 1, 1981."

Renumber the sections in sequence

Amend the title as follows:

Page 1, delete line 3

Page 1, line 4, delete everything before "eliminating"

Page 1, line 5, after "that" insert "certain"

Page 1, line 6, delete "requiring the"

Page 1, delete lines 7 and 8

Page 1, line 9, delete "62D.01, by"

Page 1, line 10, delete everything before "62D.02" and delete "62D.07,"

Page 1, line 11, delete "Subdivision 4;"

And when so amended the bill do pass. Amendments adopted. Report adopted.

Mr. Davies from the Committee on Judiciary, to which was re-referred

S. F. No. 588: A bill for an act proposing an amendment to the Minnesota Constitution, Article XIV, Section 11; removing certain restrictions on highway bonds.

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the bill be amended as follows:

Page 1, lines 13 and 14, reinstate the stricken language

Page 1, line 14, strike "\$150,000,000" and insert "\$440,000,000"

Page 2, line 3, delete "restrictions" and insert "the five percent restriction"

Page 2, line 3, after "and" insert "to establish a new limit on"

Amend the title as follows:

Page 1, line 3, delete "removing" and insert "revising"

And when so amended the bill do pass and be re-referred to the Committee on Rules and Administration. Amendments adopted. Report adopted.

Mr. Hughes from the Committee on Education, to which was referred

S. F. No. 301: A bill for an act relating to education; changing a reference to the provisions governing the student loan program; allowing parents of eligible students to obtain loans through the student loan program; increasing the bonding authority of the higher education coordinating board; expanding the career guidance program; transferring responsibility for certain portions of the statewide testing program; providing exclusive property rights in certain records; abolishing tuition subsidies for post-secondary vocational-technical school students; providing for certification of status of tuition subsidy recipients; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Sections 136A.141; 136A.15, by adding a subdivision; 136A.16, Subdivisions 3 and 4; 136A.17, Subdivisions 1, 4, 5, 7, and 10; 136A.171; 136A.85; 136A.86, Subdivisions 2, 3, and by adding a subdivision; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 136A.236.

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the bill be amended as follows:

Delete everything after the enacting clause and insert:

“Section 1. Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 136A.141, is amended to read:

136A.141 [STUDENT LOAN PROGRAM.]

The higher education coordinating board is ~~authorized and directed to~~ shall establish and supervise a ~~one or more student loan program programs~~ in accordance with the provisions of ~~Minnesota Statutes 1971,~~ sections 136A.14 to 136A.17.

Sec. 2. Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 136A.15, Subdivision 7, is amended to read:

Subd. 7. “Eligible student” means a student who is officially registered or accepted for enrollment at an eligible institution in Minnesota or a Minnesota resident who is officially registered as a student or accepted for enrollment at an eligible institution in another state. *Eligible student, except for purposes of section 136A.161, includes parents of an eligible student as the term “parent” is defined in the higher education act of 1965, as amended, and the regulations promulgated thereunder.*

Sec. 3. Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 136A.16, Subdivision 3, is amended to read:

Subd. 3. The board ~~shall be authorized to~~ may make loans in amounts not to exceed the maximum amount provided in the higher education act of 1965 and any amendments thereof ~~and~~. The board ~~shall be authorized to~~ may establish procedures determining the loan amounts for which students are eligible.

Sec. 4. Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 136A.16, Subdivision 4, is amended to read:

Subd. 4. The board ~~shall have the right to~~ may contract with or ~~to~~ enter into agreements with eligible lenders for ~~purposes the purpose~~ of making loans to ~~residents eligible students~~ in accordance with the policies, ~~and~~ rules, ~~and~~ regulations of the board.

Sec. 5. Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 136A.16, is amended by adding a subdivision to read:

Subd. 13. Before implementing a loan program for parents as defined in

section 2, the board shall obtain approval from the legislative advisory commission.

Sec. 6. Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 136A.17, Subdivision 1, is amended to read:

Subdivision 1. ~~Eligibility of student borrowers: An applicant~~ A student shall be eligible to apply for a loan under the provisions of sections 136A.14 to 136A.17 if the board finds that ~~he~~ the student is an eligible student as defined in those sections and is eligible for a loan under federal laws and regulations governing the ~~federally insured federal guaranteed~~ student loan program.

Sec. 7. Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 136A.17, Subdivision 4, is amended to read:

Subd. 4. No loan shall be made in excess of the maximum provided by pertinent federal laws and regulations ~~and~~. The aggregate unpaid principal amount of loans to any individual student shall not exceed the maximum provided in pertinent federal laws and regulations.

Sec. 8. Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 136A.17, Subdivision 10, is amended to read:

Subd. 10. The board is ~~authorized to~~ may establish variable repayment schedules consistent with the need and anticipated income streams of student borrowers ~~provided that such~~. The repayment schedules shall not violate the federal laws and regulations governing ~~federally insured federal guaranteed students~~ student loan programs.

Sec. 9. Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 136A.171, is amended to read:

136A.171 [REVENUE BONDS; ISSUANCE; PROCEEDS.]

The higher education coordinating board may issue revenue bonds to obtain funds for loans made in accordance with the provisions of this chapter. The aggregate amount of revenue bonds, issued directly by the board, outstanding at any one time, not including refunded bonds or otherwise defeased or discharged bonds, shall not exceed ~~\$300,000,000~~ \$550,000,000. Proceeds from the issuance of bonds may be held and invested by the board pending disbursement in the form of loans. All interest and profits from ~~such~~ the investments shall inure to the benefit of the board and shall be available to the board for the same purposes as the proceeds from the sale of revenue bonds including, but not limited to, costs incurred in administering loans under this chapter and loan reserve funds.

Sec. 10. Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 136A.85, is amended to read:

136A.85 [CAREER GUIDANCE PROGRAM; ESTABLISHMENT.]

The Minnesota higher education coordinating board shall establish for all eleventh grade students in the state who desire to participate, a statewide *career* guidance, testing ~~and~~, information *and* planning program designed to:

- (a) Assist students to make career plans and decisions regarding post-secondary education, training and goals;
- (b) Assist high school, college and vocational institute counselors in their work with students;
- (c) Assist Minnesota colleges and vocational institutes to identify students

for whose talents, interests and needs they have appropriate programs;

(d) Assist colleges and scholarship agencies to select from applicants those who show the most promise of benefiting from particular programs;

(e) Provide educators, state planners and policy makers in the state a continuous inventory of the talents, plans, needs and other characteristics of students in individual educational institutions, in educational systems, and in the state as a whole; and

(f) Assist educators, state planners and policy makers to develop improved educational measures and counseling tools.

Sec. 11. Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 136A.86, Subdivision 2, is amended to read:

Subd. 2. The board shall periodically review and evaluate the statewide career guidance, testing and information and planning program and report to the governor and legislature the program status and the board's recommendations for legislation to improve the program.

Sec. 12. Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 136A.86, Subdivision 3, is amended to read:

Subd. 3. The board ~~shall~~ may contract with the University of Minnesota to administer the program. The university of Minnesota may contract with and other testing agencies and suppliers to obtain instruments or services needed to operate the program.

Sec. 13. Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 136A.86, is amended by adding a subdivision to read:

Subd. 4. Any data, reports, studies, tapes, or other documents prepared by contractors for the board under this program shall be the exclusive property of the board, and those materials shall be remitted to the board upon completion, termination, or cancellation of any contract or agreement with the board.

Sec. 14. [CERTIFICATION.]

The Minnesota higher education coordinating board and the state board for vocational education shall develop: before February 1, 1982, the necessary procedures to provide that the essential financial needs of students who have been recipients of tuition subsidies pursuant to section 136A.236 are met through the provisions of sections 136A.09 to 136A.131.

Sec. 15. [EFFECTIVE DATE.]

Sections 1 to 14 are effective the day following final enactment."

Amend the title as follows:

Page 1, delete line 4

Page 1, line 5, delete "through the student" and insert "including parents within the definition of eligible student for guaranteed student loan purposes; requiring the higher education coordinating board to receive approval prior to implementing a parent"

Page 1, delete line 8

Page 1, line 9, delete "the statewide testing program;"

Page 1, line 10, delete "abolishing tuition"

Page 1, delete line 11

Page 1, line 12, delete "school students;"

Page 1, line 12, delete "certification of status" and insert "development of procedures by the higher education coordinating board and the state board for vocational education"

Page 1, line 13, delete "of tuition subsidy recipients"

Page 1, line 14, delete "by adding a"

Page 1, line 15, delete "subdivision" and insert "Subdivision 7"

Page 1, line 15, after "4" insert ", and by adding a subdivision"

Page 1, line 16, delete "5, 7,"

Page 1, line 18, delete "; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1980," and insert a period

Page 1, delete line 19

And when so amended the bill do pass and be re-referred to the Committee on Finance. Amendments adopted. Report adopted.

Mr. Hughes from the Committee on Education, to which were referred the following appointments as reported in the Journal for March 12, 1981:

STATE UNIVERSITY BOARD

Dale A. Johnson
 Arnold C. Anderson
 Lee J. Krueger
 John W. Borg
 Rodney N. Searle
 Bernard A. Miller
 Elizabeth A. Pegues

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the appointments be confirmed.

Mr. Moe, R. D. moved that the foregoing committee report be laid on the table. The motion prevailed.

Mr. Merriam from the Committee on Agriculture and Natural Resources, to which was referred the following appointment as reported in the Journal for February 16, 1981:

MINNESOTA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY BOARD

Dr. C. Edward Buchwald

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the appointment be confirmed.

Mr. Moe, R. D. moved that the foregoing committee report be laid on the table. The motion prevailed.

Mr. Moe, R.D. from the Committee on Rules and Administration, to which

was referred

H. F. No. 183 for comparison with companion Senate File, reports the following House File was found identical and recommends the House File be given its second reading and substituted for its companion Senate File as follows:

GENERAL ORDERS		CONSENT CALENDAR		CALENDAR	
H.F. No.	S.F. No.	H.F. No.	S.F. No.	H.F. No.	S.F. No.
				183	139

and that the above Senate File be indefinitely postponed.

Pursuant to Rule 49, this report was prepared and submitted by the Secretary of the Senate on behalf of the Committee on Rules and Administration. Report adopted.

Mr. Moe, R.D. from the Committee on Rules and Administration, to which was referred

H. F. No. 157 for comparison with companion Senate File, reports the following House File was found not identical with its companion Senate File as follows:

GENERAL ORDERS		CONSENT CALENDAR		CALENDAR	
H.F. No.	S.F. No.	H.F. No.	S.F. No.	H.F. No.	S.F. No.
157	332				

Pursuant to Rule 49, the Committee on Rules and Administration recommends that H. F. No. 157 be amended as follows:

Page 1, line 20, delete "*and shall notify the minor that the report has been made*"

And when so amended H. F. No. 157 will be identical to S. F.No. 332, and further recommends that H. F. No. 157 be given its second reading and substituted for S. F. No. 332, and that the Senate File be indefinitely postponed.

Pursuant to Rule 49, this report was prepared and submitted by the Secretary of the Senate on behalf of the Committee on Rules and Administration. Amendments adopted. Report adopted.

SECOND READING OF SENATE BILLS

S. F. Nos. 550, 401, 699, 525, 536, 788, 558, 639, 136, 262, 527 and 110 were read the second time.

SECOND READING OF HOUSE BILLS

H. F. Nos. 183 and 157 were read the second time.

MOTIONS AND RESOLUTIONS

Mr. Ashbach moved that the name of Mr. Frank be added as co-author to Senate Resolution No. 33. The motion prevailed.

Mr. Ashbach moved that the name of Mr. Frank be added as co-author to

Senate Resolution No. 34. The motion prevailed.

Mr. Purfeerst moved that the name of Mr. Ashbach be stricken and that the name of Mr. Lindgren be added as co-author to S. F. No. 247. The motion prevailed.

Mr. Sikorski moved that the name of Mr. Chmielewski be added as co-author to S. F. No. 697. The motion prevailed.

Mr. Lessard moved that S. F. No. 746 be withdrawn from the Committee on Education and re-referred to the Committee on Local Government and Urban Affairs. The motion prevailed.

Mr. Bertram moved that the name of Mr. Dahl be added as co-author to S. F. No. 851. The motion prevailed.

Mr. Ulland moved that the name of Mr. Solon be added as co-author to S. F. No. 909. The motion prevailed.

Mr. Dahl moved that the name of Mr. Frank be added as co-author to S. F. No. 929. The motion prevailed.

Mr. Petty moved that the name of Mr. Frank be added as co-author to S. F. No. 937. The motion prevailed.

Mr. Johnson moved that the name of Mr. Frank be added as co-author to S. F. No. 949. The motion prevailed.

Ms. Berglin moved that the name of Mr. Merriam be added as co-author to S. F. No. 952. The motion prevailed.

Mr. Dicklich moved that the name of Mr. Johnson be added as co-author to S. F. No. 968. The motion prevailed.

Mr. Dicklich moved that the name of Mr. Johnson be added as co-author to S. F. No. 969. The motion prevailed.

Mr. Dicklich moved that the name of Mr. Johnson be added as co-author to S. F. No. 970. The motion prevailed.

Mr. Dicklich moved that the name of Mr. Johnson be added as co-author to S. F. No. 971. The motion prevailed.

Mr. Chmielewski moved that H. F. No. 470 be withdrawn from the Committee on General Legislation and Administrative Rules and re-referred to the Committee on Rules and Administration for comparison with S. F. No. 439, now on the Consent Calendar. The motion prevailed.

Mr. Rued introduced—

Senate Resolution No. 36: A Senate resolution congratulating the Raiderettes girls basketball team from Brainerd Community College for winning the 1981 Minnesota Community College Conference Tournament Championship.

Referred to the Committee on Rules and Administration.

Mr. Lessard introduced—

Senate Resolution No. 37: A Senate resolution extending congratulations to

Erin Roth for being selected as a member of the All American Hockey Team.

Referred to the Committee on Rules and Administration.

Mr. Peterson, D.L. introduced—

Senate Resolution No. 38: A Senate resolution congratulating the Scarlet Knights team from Heron Lake-Okabena High School for winning the 1981 Class A State High School Girls Basketball Championship.

Referred to the Committee on Rules and Administration.

Mr. Merriam introduced—

Senate Resolution No. 39: A Senate resolution congratulating the Cardinals girls basketball team from Coon Rapids High School for winning the 1981 Class AA State High School Girls Basketball Championship.

Referred to the Committee on Rules and Administration.

Mr. Johnson moved that S. F. No. 558 be stricken from General Orders and re-referred to the Committee on Taxes and Tax Laws. The motion prevailed.

RECESS

Mr. Moe, R.D. moved that the Senate do now recess subject to the call of the President. The motion prevailed.

After a brief recess, the President called the Senate to order.

APPOINTMENTS

Mr. Moe, R.D. from the Subcommittee on Committees recommends that the following Senators be and they hereby are appointed as a Conference Committee on:

S. F. No. 247: Messrs. Purfeerst, Bang and Stern.

Mr. Moe, R.D. moved that the foregoing appointments be approved. The motion prevailed.

CALENDAR

H. F. No. 496: A bill for an act relating to intoxicating liquor; proof required to purchase, possess or consume; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 340.039.

Was read the third time and placed on its final passage.

The question was taken on the passage of the bill.

The roll was called, and there were yeas 56 and nays 0, as follows:

Those who voted in the affirmative were:

Ashbach	Brataas	Frank	Lantry	Peterson, C.C.
Bang	Chmielewski	Frederick	Lindgren	Peterson, D.L.
Belanger	Dahl	Frederickson	Luther	Peterson, R.W.
Benson	Davies	Hanson	Moe, D.M.	Petty
Berg	Davis	Johnson	Moe, R.D.	Pillsbury
Berglin	Dicklich	Knutson	Nelson	Purfeerst
Bernhagen	Dieterich	Kronebusch	Olhoft	Ramstad
Bertram	Engler	Langseth	Penny	Renneke

Rued	Solon	Stumpf	Ulland	Wegener
Schmitz	Spear	Taylor	Vega	Willet
Setzepfandt	Stern	Tennessee	Waldorf	
Sieloff	Stokowski			

So the bill passed and its title was agreed to.

H. F. No. 77: A bill for an act relating to mobile home parks; eliminating certain mobile home park reports made to the secretary of state; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 327.29.

Was read the third time and placed on its final passage.

The question was taken on the passage of the bill.

The roll was called, and there were yeas 58 and nays 0, as follows:

Those who voted in the affirmative were:

Ashbach	Davis	Langseth	Peterson, R.W.	Stern
Bang	Dicklich	Lantry	Petty	Stokowski
Belanger	Dieterich	Lindgren	Pillsbury	Stumpf
Benson	Engler	Luther	Purfeerst	Taylor
Berg	Frank	Moe, D.M.	Ramstad	Tennessee
Berglin	Frederick	Moe, R.D.	Renneke	Ulland
Bernhagen	Frederickson	Nelson	Rued	Vega
Bertram	Hanson	Olhoft	Schmitz	Waldorf
Brataas	Johnson	Pehler	Setzepfandt	Wegener
Chmielewski	Knutson	Penny	Sieloff	Willet
Dahl	Kroening	Peterson, C.C.	Solon	
Davies	Kronebusch	Peterson, D.L.	Spear	

So the bill passed and its title was agreed to.

S. F. No. 11: A bill for an act relating to liens; increasing the amount of an employee's lien for wages; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 514.59.

Was read the third time and placed on its final passage.

The question was taken on the passage of the bill.

The roll was called, and there were yeas 50 and nays 6, as follows:

Those who voted in the affirmative were:

Bang	Dieterich	Lindgren	Petty	Spear
Belanger	Engler	Luther	Pillsbury	Stern
Benson	Frank	Moe, D.M.	Purfeerst	Stokowski
Berg	Frederickson	Moe, R.D.	Ramstad	Stumpf
Berglin	Hanson	Nelson	Renneke	Taylor
Bertram	Johnson	Olhoft	Rued	Tennessee
Chmielewski	Kroening	Pehler	Schmitz	Ulland
Dahl	Kronebusch	Penny	Setzepfandt	Vega
Davies	Langseth	Peterson, C.C.	Sieloff	Waldorf
Davis	Lantry	Peterson, R.W.	Solon	Willet

Those who voted in the negative were:

Ashbach	Brataas	Frederick	Knutson	Peterson, D.L.
Bernhagen				

So the bill passed and its title was agreed to.

CONSENT CALENDAR

H. F. No. 38: A bill for an act relating to local government; permitting the

city of Northfield to make payments to the town of Waterford as a condition of an annexation.

Was read the third time and placed on its final passage.

The question was taken on the passage of the bill.

The roll was called, and there were yeas 59 and nays 0, as follows:

Those who voted in the affirmative were:

Ashbach	Davis	Langseth	Peterson, D.L.	Solon
Bang	Dicklich	Lantry	Peterson, R.W.	Spear
Belanger	Dieterich	Lessard	Petty	Stern
Benson	Engler	Lindgren	Pillsbury	Stokowski
Berg	Frank	Luther	Purfeerst	Stumpf
Berglin	Frederick	Moe, D.M.	Ramstad	Taylor
Bernhagen	Frederickson	Moe, R.D.	Renneke	Uiland
Bertram	Hanson	Nelson	Rued	Vega
Brataas	Johnson	Olhoft	Schmitz	Waldorf
Chmielewski	Knutson	Pehler	Setzepfandt	Wegener
Dahl	Kroening	Penny	Sieloff	Willet
Davies	Kronebusch	Peterson, C.C.	Sikorski	

So the bill passed and its title was agreed to.

S. F. No. 502: A bill for an act relating to public welfare; modifying certain provisions regarding continued eligibility for medical assistance; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 256B.062.

Was read the third time and placed on its final passage.

The question was taken on the passage of the bill.

The roll was called, and there were yeas 60 and nays 0, as follows:

Those who voted in the affirmative were:

Ashbach	Davis	Langseth	Peterson, D.L.	Solon
Bang	Dicklich	Lantry	Peterson, R.W.	Spear
Belanger	Dieterich	Lessard	Petty	Stern
Benson	Engler	Lindgren	Pillsbury	Stokowski
Berg	Frank	Luther	Purfeerst	Stumpf
Berglin	Frederick	Moe, D.M.	Ramstad	Taylor
Bernhagen	Frederickson	Moe, R.D.	Renneke	Tennessee
Bertram	Hanson	Nelson	Rued	Uiland
Brataas	Johnson	Olhoft	Schmitz	Vega
Chmielewski	Knutson	Pehler	Setzepfandt	Waldorf
Dahl	Kroening	Penny	Sieloff	Wegener
Davies	Kronebusch	Peterson, C.C.	Sikorski	Willet

So the bill passed and its title was agreed to.

GENERAL ORDERS

The Senate resolved itself into a Committee of the Whole, with Ms. Berglin in the chair.

After some time spent therein, the committee arose, and Ms. Berglin reported that the committee had considered the following:

S. F. No. 96, which the committee recommends to pass.

H. F. No. 44, which the committee recommends to pass with the following

amendment offered by Mr. Dieterich:

Page 1, after line 14, insert:

“Sec. 2. Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 144.56, is amended by adding a subdivision to read:

Subd. 2a. The commissioner shall not adopt any rule which unconditionally prohibits double beds in a boarding care home. The commissioner may adopt rules setting criteria for when double beds will be allowed.

Sec. 3. Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 144A.04, is amended by adding a subdivision to read:

Subd. 3a. The commissioner shall not adopt any rule which unconditionally prohibits double beds in a nursing home. The commissioner may adopt rules setting criteria for when double beds will be allowed.

Renumber the sections in sequence

Amend the title as follows:

Page 1, line 7, delete “Section” and insert “Sections 144.56, by adding a subdivision; 144A.04, by adding a subdivision; and”

The motion prevailed. So the amendment was adopted.

H. F. No. 45, which the committee recommends to pass with the following amendment offered by Mr. Dieterich:

Page 1, after line 11, insert:

“Sec. 2. Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 144A.04, is amended by adding a subdivision to read:

Subd. 2a. The commissioner shall not adopt any rule unconditionally prohibiting locks on patient room doors in nursing homes. The commissioner may adopt a rule requiring locks to be consistent with the applicable rules enforced by the state fire marshal.

Renumber the sections in sequence

Amend the title as follows:

Page 1, line 5, before the period, insert “; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 144A.04, by adding a subdivision”

The motion prevailed. So the amendment was adopted.

On motion of Ms. Berglin, the report of the Committee of the Whole, as kept by the Secretary, was adopted.

Without objection, the Senate reverted to the Order of Business of Motions and Resolutions.

MOTIONS AND RESOLUTIONS

SUSPENSION OF RULES

Mr. Moe, R.D. moved that temporary Joint Rule 2.06 be suspended as to the printing requirement for the Conference Committee Report on S.F. No. 366.

The motion prevailed.

S. F. No. 366 and the Conference Committee Report thereon were reported to the Senate.

CONFERENCE COMMITTEE REPORT ON S. F. NO. 366

A bill for an act relating to taxation; providing a new schedule for payment of income taxes withheld from wages; giving temporary rulemaking authority; appropriating money; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 290.92, Subdivision 6.

March 26, 1981

The Honorable Jack Davies
President of the Senate

The Honorable Harry A. Sieben, Jr.
Speaker of the House of Representatives

We, the undersigned conferees for S. F. No. 366, report that we have agreed upon the items in dispute and recommend as follows:

That the House recede from its amendments, and that S.F. No. 366 be amended as follows:

Page 2, line 26, after "\$200," insert "*or beginning January 1, 1982, \$500,*"

Page 7, delete sections 3 and 4

Page 7, lines 22 and 23, delete "*Sections 2, 3, and 4 are*" and insert "*Section 2 is*"

Renumber the sections

Amend the title as follows:

Page 1, line 4, delete "appropriating money;"

We request adoption of this report and repassage of the bill.

Senate Conferees: (Signed) Roger Moe, Douglas J. Johnson, Ron Sieloff, Mel Frederick, Marvin Hanson

House Conferees: (Signed) Joel Jacobs, Terry Dempsey, Harry A. Sieben, Jr.

Mr. Moe, R. D. moved that the foregoing recommendations and Conference Committee Report on S. F. No. 366 be now adopted, and that the bill be repassed as amended by the Conference Committee. The motion prevailed. So the recommendations and Conference Committee Report were adopted.

S. F. No. 366 was read the third time, as amended by the Conference Committee, and placed on its repassage.

The question was taken on the repassage of the bill, as amended by the Conference Committee.

The roll was called, and there were yeas 49 and nays 7, as follows:

Those who voted in the affirmative were:

Ashbach	Engler	Langseth	Peterson, C.C.	Sikorski
Bang	Frank	Lantry	Peterson, D.L.	Solon
Belanger	Frederickson	Lessard	Petty	Spear
Benson	Hanson	Lindgren	Pillsbury	Stern
Berglin	Humphrey	Luther	Purfeerst	Stokowski
Bertram	Johnson	Moe, D.M.	Renneke	Taylor
Chmielewski	Knoll	Moe, R.D.	Rued	Ulland
Dahl	Knutson	Nelson	Schmitz	Waldorf
Davis	Kroening	Pehler	Setzepfandt	Willet
Dicklich	Kronebusch	Penny	Sieloff	

Those who voted in the negative were:

Berg	Dieterich	Peterson, R.W.	Stumpf	Tennessee
Davies	Olhoff			

So the bill, as amended by the Conference Committee, was repassed and its title was agreed to.

INTRODUCTION AND FIRST READING OF SENATE BILLS

The following bills were read the first time and referred to the committees indicated.

Messrs. Peterson, C.C.; Renneke and Frederickson introduced—

S.F. No. 974: A bill for an act relating to retirement; reducing a certain deduction from amounts available to pay post-retirement adjustments; appropriating funds; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 11A.18, Subdivision 9.

Referred to the Committee on Public Employees and Pensions.

Messrs. Peterson, C.C.; Ashbach; Petty; Menning and Benson introduced—

S.F. No. 975: A bill for an act relating to commerce; eliminating the state override of the federal usury preemption on certain loans; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 47.203.

Referred to the Committee on Commerce.

Ms. Berglin, Messrs. Dicklich and Solon introduced—

S.F. No. 976: A bill for an act relating to health; prescribing periods of retention for hospital medical records; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 145.32.

Referred to the Committee on Health, Welfare and Corrections.

Mr. Chmielewski introduced—

S.F. No. 977: A bill for an act relating to the housing finance agency; altering the formula for distribution of funds through a housing program offering assistance to Indians; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 462A.21, Subdivision 10.

Referred to the Committee on Energy and Housing.

Mr. Chmielewski introduced—

S.F. No. 978: A bill for an act relating to workers' compensation; changing the funding for administrative expenses related to the special compensation fund; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 176.131, Subdivision 10.

Referred to the Committee on Employment.

Messrs. Menning, Rued and Nichols introduced—

S.F. No. 979: A bill for an act relating to agriculture; eliminating the requirement for anaplasmosis testing of breeding cattle; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 35.251.

Referred to the Committee on Agriculture and Natural Resources.

Messrs. Vega and Engler introduced—

S.F. No. 980: A bill for an act relating to state lands; providing for the transfer of certain lands to the city of Hastings.

Referred to the Committee on Agriculture and Natural Resources.

Messrs. Spear, Moe, D.M.; Renneke; Frederickson and Peterson, C.C. introduced—

S.F. No. 981: A bill for an act relating to retirement; Minneapolis teachers retirement fund association; authorizing the establishment of a lump sum post retirement adjustment program; authorizing service credit for parental leaves.

Referred to the Committee on Public Employees and Pensions.

Messrs. Pehler and Davis introduced—

S.F. No. 982: A bill for an act relating to the city of St. Cloud; authorizing the improvement and operation of the city-owned Mississippi River dam to provide for generation and transmission of hydroelectric power, and the issuance of revenue bonds to finance the project.

Referred to the Committee on Local Government and Urban Affairs.

Messrs. Moe, D.M.; Renneke and Spear introduced—

S.F. No. 983: A bill for an act relating to retirement; making various administrative changes in the teachers retirement law; authorizing a medical advisor; payment of shortages in member deductions; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Sections 354.091; 354.092; 354.44, Subdivisions 4 and 8; 354.48, Subdivisions 2, 4, and by adding a subdivision; 354.51, Subdivision 5; 354.52, Subdivision 4; and 354.62, Subdivisions 4 and 5.

Referred to the Committee on Public Employees and Pensions.

Messrs. Ulland, Merriam, Bernhagen, Nichols and Setzepfandt introduced—

S.F. No. 984: A bill for an act relating to game and fish; increasing game and

fish licenses and other fees; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Sections 98.46, Subdivisions 2, 2a, 3, 4, 5, 5a, 6, 7, 8, 9, 9a, 10, 11, 12, 14, 15, 16, 17, 18, and 19; 99.28, Subdivision 5; 100.35, Subdivisions 1 and 5; and 101.44.

Referred to the Committee on Agriculture and Natural Resources.

Messrs. Peterson, R.W.; Hanson and Merriam introduced—

S.F. No. 985: A bill for an act relating to crimes; providing for the type of proof of the fact of killing in murder and manslaughter cases; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 634.051.

Referred to the Committee on Judiciary.

Messrs. Wegener; Peterson, D.L.; Petty and Olhoft introduced—

S.F. No. 986: A bill for an act relating to corrections; providing for sheriffs expenses incurred in conveying convicts to correctional facilities; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 243.17, Subdivision 1.

Referred to the Committee on Local Government and Urban Affairs.

Messrs. Peterson, R.W. and Davies introduced—

S.F. No. 987: A bill for an act relating to public dancing places; repealing law requiring public dancing places to be brightly illuminated; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 624.48.

Referred to the Committee on Judiciary.

Messrs. Tennessen, Ramstad, Stern and Davies introduced—

S.F. No. 988: A bill for an act relating to fire insurance; allowing an application to be introduced as evidence; requiring that the insured in case of loss shall show the damaged property and related records to the company and consent to be examined under oath; permitting reduction of the amount to be paid in case of loss if the building is not repaired or replaced; providing for a two-way exchange of information on fire loss or potential fire loss between insurance companies and authorized persons; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Sections 65A.01, Subdivisions 3 and 5; 65A.08, Subdivision 2; 299F.054, Subdivision 1, and by adding a subdivision.

Referred to the Committee on Commerce.

Mr. Penny introduced—

S.F. No. 989: A bill for an act relating to taxation; providing that interest on estate tax should begin to accrue 18 months after the death of the decedent; providing that the purchase price of a motor vehicle for purposes of the motor vehicle excise tax shall be reduced by the trade-in value of any personal property taken in part payment; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Sections 291.131, Subdivision 6; 291.132, Subdivision 1; 291.15; 291.18; and 297B.01, Subdivision 8.

Referred to the Committee on Taxes and Tax Laws.

Mr. Knoll introduced—

S.F. No. 990: A bill for an act relating to charitable trusts; transferring responsibility of keeping certain records; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Sections 501.75; 501.76; 501.77; and 501.78, Subdivision 4.

Referred to the Committee on Governmental Operations.

Mr. Knoll introduced—

S.F. No. 991: A bill for an act relating to social and charitable organizations; increasing the threshold dollar amount required for the use of a certified financial statement; determining what is properly included in cost of goods or services; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Sections 309.53, Subdivision 3; and 309.555, Subdivision 2.

Referred to the Committee on Governmental Operations.

Mr. Peterson, C.C. introduced—

S.F. No. 992: A bill for an act relating to taxation; abolishing the income tax credit for premium taxes paid by insurance companies; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 290.06, Subdivision 3f.

Referred to the Committee on Taxes and Tax Laws.

Mr. Peterson, C.C. introduced—

S.F. No. 993: A bill for an act relating to children; authorizing counties to establish multidisciplinary child protection teams; proposing new law coded in Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 626.

Referred to the Committee on Health, Welfare and Corrections.

Messrs. Setzepfandt, Keefe, Chmielewski and Ashbach introduced—

S.F. No. 994: A bill for an act relating to taxation; sales; exempting sales of road building materials used in road construction and maintenance; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 297A.25, Subdivision 1; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 297A.25, Subdivision 4.

Referred to the Committee on Taxes and Tax Laws.

Messrs. Ulland, Chmielewski, Wegener and Solon introduced—

S.F. No. 995: A bill for an act relating to commerce; providing for compensation for certain actions of political subdivisions regarding licensed private waste collectors, processors, or disposers; proposing new law coded in Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 115A.

Referred to the Committee on Agriculture and Natural Resources.

Mr. Pehler introduced—

S.F. No. 996: A bill for an act relating to game and fish; increasing non-resident hunting license fees; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 98.46, Subdivision 14.

Referred to the Committee on Agriculture and Natural Resources.

Mr. Nichols introduced—

S.F. No. 997: A bill for an act relating to workers' compensation; defining home care attendants for handicapped persons who are paid by the state as state employees for workers' compensation purposes; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 176.011, Subdivision 9.

Referred to the Committee on Employment.

Messrs. Lessard, Johnson, Willet, Ashbach and Pillsbury introduced—

S.F. No. 998: A bill for an act relating to education; creating a raptor research and rehabilitation program in the veterinary school of the University of Minnesota; appropriating money; proposing new law coded in Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 137.

Referred to the Committee on Agriculture and Natural Resources.

Messrs. Lindgren, Belanger, Engler, Renneke and Ashbach introduced—

S.F. No. 999: A bill for an act relating to public welfare; changing the general assistance program so that it covers only emergency needs; providing for vendor and voucher payments; setting standards for eligibility; limiting the duration of assistance; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Sections 256D.01, Subdivision 1; 256D.02, Subdivisions 4, 4a, 11, and 13, and by adding a subdivision; 256D.03; 256D.04; 256D.05; 256D.06, Subdivisions 1 and 3, and by adding a subdivision; 256D.07; 256D.08; 256D.09, Subdivision 1; 256D.10; 256D.11, Subdivisions 1, 4, 5, and 8, and by adding a subdivision; 256D.13, Subdivision 1; 256D.15; and 256D.16; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1980, Sections 256D.06, Subdivisions 1a and 2; 256D.09, Subdivision 2; and 256D.11, Subdivisions 1a, 2a, and 3a.

Referred to the Committee on Health, Welfare and Corrections.

Messrs. Benson, Rued, Davis, Lessard and Frederickson introduced—

S.F. No. 1000: A bill for an act relating to commerce; regulating the licensing of electricians; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 326.242, Subdivision 2.

Referred to the Committee on Governmental Operations.

Messrs. Pehler and Davis introduced—

S.F. No. 1001: A bill for an act relating to agriculture; providing for state-wide agricultural land preservation; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Sections 473H.01; 473H.02; 473H.04; 473H.06; and 473H.08, Subdivision 4.

Referred to the Committee on Agriculture and Natural Resources.

Mr. Lessard introduced—

S.F. No. 1002: A bill for an act relating to tax forfeited lands; sale of stumpage without bids; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 282.04,

Subdivision 1.

Referred to the Committee on Agriculture and Natural Resources.

Messrs. Bertram, Davis, Peterson, D.L. and Setzepfandt introduced—

S.F. No. 1003: A bill for an act relating to public waters; requiring notice by certified mail to owners of property which includes or is adjacent to areas proposed to be designated as public waters or wetlands; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 105.391, Subdivision 1.

Referred to the Committee on Agriculture and Natural Resources.

Ms. Berglin introduced—

S.F. No. 1004: A bill for an act relating to children; amending the definitions of shelter care facility and secure detention facility; extending the time limit for detaining children who may be dependent or neglected children; defining the privilege doctrine to exempt child abuse or neglect proceedings; creating an exception for chemical dependency personnel in a proceeding or investigation for child abuse or neglect; changing the disposition provision for children found to be neglected or dependent; changing the definition of sexual abuse in the reporting maltreatment of minors law; including attorneys and clergy to persons mandated to report child abuse and neglect; requiring persons who report child abuse or neglect to share all relevant information to the authorities authorized to receive and investigate the report; requiring the local welfare agency and police department to destroy records seven years after the date of final entry in the case record; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Sections 254A.09; 260.015, Subdivisions 16 and 17; 260.171, Subdivisions 2, 4, 5 and 6; 260.172, Subdivision 1; 260.191, Subdivision 1; 626.556, Subdivisions 2, 3, 7, 8 and 11; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 260.015, Subdivision 15.

Referred to the Committee on Judiciary.

Mrs. Brataas, Messrs. Stern, Wegener, Setzepfandt and Benson introduced—

S.F. No. 1005: A bill for an act relating to municipal industrial development; permitting financing of certain health related housing facilities; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 474.02, Subdivision 1d.

Referred to the Committee on Local Government and Urban Affairs.

Messrs. Rued, Bernhagen, Chmielewski, Solon and Vega introduced—

S.F. No. 1006: A bill for an act relating to taxation; income; excluding from gross income the first \$500 of income paid for voluntary firefighter services; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 290.01, Subdivision 20.

Referred to the Committee on Taxes and Tax Laws.

Messrs. Moe, D.M. and Hughes introduced—

S.F. No. 1007: A bill for an act relating to retirement; teachers' occupational disability benefits; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 354.05, by

adding a subdivision; proposing new law coded in Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 354.

Referred to the Committee on Public Employees and Pensions.

Messrs. Spear and Ashbach introduced—

S.F. No. 1008: A bill for an act relating to courts; tax court; increasing the number of authorized administrative employees; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 271.02.

Referred to the Committee on Judiciary.

Ms. Berglin, Messrs. Pehler, Knoll and Merriam introduced—

S.F. No. 1009: A bill for an act relating to real estate; enabling municipalities to require filing of contracts for deed; proposing new law coded in Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 507.

Referred to the Committee on Judiciary.

Messrs. Frank, Knoll and Dicklich introduced—

S.F. No. 1010: A bill for an act relating to human rights; allowing certain complaints of discrimination to be submitted to binding arbitration; proposing new law coded in Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 363.

Referred to the Committee on Governmental Operations.

Mrs. Lantry, Messrs. Chmielewski and Solon introduced—

S.F. No. 1011: A bill for an act relating to health; proposing a population-based, statewide cancer and birth defects surveillance system; establishing an advisory task force; designing a system and pilot test; appropriating money.

Referred to the Committee on Health, Welfare and Corrections.

Mr. Solon introduced—

S.F. No. 1012: A bill for an act relating to health; encouraging philanthropic support of hospitals; providing that funds derived from specified types of gifts or grants shall not be deducted from the operating costs of a hospital; proposing new law coded in Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 144.

Referred to the Committee on Health, Welfare and Corrections.

Messrs. Keefe, Stern and Ramstad introduced—

S.F. No. 1013: A bill for an act relating to the legislature; reducing the number of members of the senate and house of representatives; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 2.021.

Referred to the Committee on Rules and Administration.

Messrs. Petty, Johnson, Ashbach, Pehler and Benson introduced—

S.F. No. 1014: A bill for an act relating to financial institutions; providing

for reasonable time to respond to requests for documents and reasonable compensation for costs of document production; proposing new law coded in Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 47.

Referred to the Committee on Commerce.

Messrs. Peterson, R.W.; Hanson; Peterson, D.L.; Ramstad and Chmielewski introduced—

S.F. No. 1015: A bill for an act relating to civil actions; limitations of actions; providing that actions for malpractice against health care professionals be commenced within two years; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 541.07.

Referred to the Committee on Judiciary.

Mr. Dahl introduced—

S.F. No. 1016: A bill for an act relating to Independent School District No. 624, White Bear Lake; authorizing it to transfer interest earnings from capital outlay and debt redemption funds to its general fund.

Referred to the Committee on Education.

Messrs. Merriam, Lessard, Keefe, Dahl and Spear introduced—

S.F. No. 1017: A bill for an act relating to commerce; requiring that consumer contracts be written in clear and coherent language; providing remedies; proposing new law coded in Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 325G.

Referred to the Committee on Commerce.

Mr. Merriam introduced—

S.F. No. 1018: A bill for an act relating to taxation; eliminating unnecessary language concerning a property tax exemption for cheese; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Sections 272.02, Subdivision 1; 273.115, Subdivisions 1, 2, and 3; and 273.116, Subdivisions 1 and 2.

Referred to the Committee on Taxes and Tax Laws.

Mr. Ulland introduced—

S.F. No. 1019: A bill for an act relating to transportation; providing for continuing Amtrak rail passenger service between Duluth and the Twin Cities metropolitan area; appropriating money.

Referred to the Committee on Transportation.

Mr. Chmielewski introduced—

S.F. No. 1020: A bill for an act relating to taxation; providing a reduction of certain property taxes; providing reimbursement to taxing districts for revenue lost as a result thereof; appropriating money; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 273.13, Subdivisions 9 and 15a.

Referred to the Committee on Taxes and Tax Laws.

Messrs. Knutson, Ramstad, Lindgren and Rued introduced—

S.F. No. 1021: A bill for an act relating to child abuse; requiring reports of certain sexual and physical abuse of children; requiring reports to parents in certain cases; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 626.556, Subdivisions 1, 2, 3, 7 and 9.

Referred to the Committee on Judiciary.

Mr. Penny introduced—

S.F. No. 1022: A bill for an act relating to water; raising the petitioners' bond in certain drainage project cases and the appellant's bond in the case of certain appeals; eliminating a responsibility imposed on certain water project contractors; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Sections 106.041; and 106.631, Subdivision 2; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 105.463.

Referred to the Committee on Agriculture and Natural Resources.

Mr. Knutson introduced—

S.F. No. 1023: A bill for an act relating to crimes; requiring the sentencing guidelines commission to modify the sentencing guidelines by providing for more frequent application of incarcerative sanctions and increasing the duration of presumptive sentences; requiring modification of the sentencing guidelines to include specific aggravating factors for major narcotics offenses; requiring the commission to authorize judicial consideration of "real offense" information in certain cases involving the plea negotiation process; requiring the commission to study the impact of the plea negotiation process on the operation of the guidelines; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 244.09, Subdivision 5; proposing new law coded in Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 244.

Referred to the Committee on Judiciary.

Messrs. Knutson, Lindgren and Ramstad introduced—

S.F. No. 1024: A bill for an act relating to criminal justice; creating an office of criminal justice within the state planning agency; establishing a criminal justice advisory council to serve as an advisory committee to the office of criminal justice; proposing new law coded in Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 4; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 299A.03.

Referred to the Committee on Judiciary.

Messrs. Knutson and Lindgren introduced—

S.F. No. 1025: A bill for an act relating to children; requiring stepparents to support their unadopted stepchildren; proposing new law coded in Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 257.

Referred to the Committee on Judiciary.

Ms. Berglin; Messrs. Solon; Moe, R.D.; Sikorski and Purfeerst introduced—

S.F. No. 1026: A bill for an act relating to public welfare; providing for

alternatives to nursing home care in counties with preadmission screening; appropriating money; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 256B.091.

Referred to the Committee on Health, Welfare and Corrections.

Ms. Berglin, Messrs. Solon and Nelson introduced—

S.F. No. 1027: A bill for an act relating to health; clarifying certain requirements regarding the Hill-Burton program; defining terms; providing remedies and penalties; appropriating money; proposing new law coded in Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 145.

Referred to the Committee on Health, Welfare and Corrections.

Mr. Davies introduced—

S.F. No. 1028: A bill for an act relating to crimes; eliminating the defenses of mental illness and mental deficiency; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 611.026.

Referred to the Committee on Judiciary.

Mr. Merriam introduced—

S.F. No. 1029: A bill for an act relating to education; permitting school boards to deposit the proceeds from the sale or exchange of school buildings or real property in the capital expenditure fund under certain circumstances; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 123.36, Subdivision 13.

Referred to the Committee on Education.

Mr. Merriam introduced—

S.F. No. 1030: A bill for an act relating to education; providing that in certain circumstances the words, terms and phrases in certain sections have the meanings given them in the manual for the uniform financial accounting and reporting system; providing that encumbrances do not constitute expenditures or liabilities; providing that certain purchase orders shall be expenditures in the fiscal year the liability is incurred; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Sections 121.90; and 121.906, Subdivisions 2 and 3.

Referred to the Committee on Education.

Messrs. Merriam, Pehler, Luther, Keefe and Sikorski introduced—

S.F. No. 1031: A bill for an act relating to the environment; establishing an environmental response fund to pay for removal and remedial action associated with certain hazardous substances released into the environment; providing for liability for releases of hazardous substances; imposing penalties; appropriating money; proposing new law coded as Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 115B.

Referred to the Committee on Agriculture and Natural Resources.

Mr. Pillsbury introduced—

S.F. No. 1032: A bill for an act relating to transportation; providing for the

financing of certain services of the department of transportation; increasing the motor vehicle registration tax on certain vehicles; increasing the tax on gasoline and special fuels; authorizing the issuance of state transportation bonds and appropriating the proceeds for the purpose of providing money for capital improvements comprising construction and reconstruction of key bridges on the trunk highway system, segments of the interstate system and interstate highway substitution projects; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Sections 168.011, Subdivisions 7, 10, 17 and 25; 168.013, Subdivisions 1a, 1b, 1c, 1d, 1e, 1g, 1h and 2; 168.017, Subdivisions 1 and 3; 174.50, Subdivision 1; and 296.02, Subdivision 1; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 168.013, Subdivisions 16 and 17.

Referred to the Committee on Transportation.

Messrs. Spear, Stern and Tennesen introduced—

S.F. No. 1033: A bill for an act relating to intoxicating liquor; permitting holders of both on-sale wine and on-sale non-intoxicating malt beverages licenses to sell intoxicating malt beverages; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 340.11, Subdivision 20.

Referred to the Committee on Commerce.

Ms. Berglin introduced—

S.F. No. 1034: A bill for an act relating to the state building code; authorizing municipalities to adopt certain provisions which are stricter than the state building code; proposing new law coded in Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 16.

Referred to the Committee on Energy and Housing.

Ms. Berglin introduced—

S.F. No. 1035: A bill for an act relating to individual housing accounts; providing for the subtraction from federal adjusted gross income of certain contributions to and interest earned on individual housing accounts; repealing the deduction for individual housing account contributions and interest; clarifying various provisions relating to individual housing accounts; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Sections 48.159, Subdivision 2; 50.157, Subdivision 2; 51A.21, Subdivision 16a; 52.136; 290.01, Subdivision 20; 290.08, by adding a subdivision; and 290.17, Subdivision 2; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 290.09, Subdivision 30.

Referred to the Committee on Energy and Housing.

Mr. Sieloff introduced—

S.F. No. 1036: A bill for an act relating to contracts; providing for the enforceability of certain agreements between certain cohabiting parties; proposing new law coded in Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 513; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 513.075.

Referred to the Committee on Judiciary.

Mr. Sikorski introduced—

S.F. No. 1037: A bill for an act relating to juveniles; providing for the

detention of juveniles for whom a motion to refer for prosecution is pending before the court; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 260.173, Subdivision 4.

Referred to the Committee on Judiciary.

Mr. Sikorski introduced—

S.F. No. 1038: A bill for an act relating to education; authorizing school boards to increase their maximum authorized levy in any amount unless disapproved at a referendum; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 275.125, Subdivision 2a.

Referred to the Committee on Education.

Mr. Sikorski introduced—

S.F. No. 1039: A bill for an act relating to energy; allowing the use of certain gas lamps; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 116H.12, Subdivision 3a, and by adding a subdivision.

Referred to the Committee on Energy and Housing.

Messrs. Merriam, Pehler and Luther introduced—

S.F. No. 1040: A bill for an act relating to the environment; clarifying terms and duties in the waste management act; extending time limits for site selections and reports; providing that certain appropriations shall remain available until expended; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Sections 115A.03, Subdivisions 15 and 29; 115A.06, Subdivision 4, and by adding a subdivision; 115A.08, Subdivisions 4, 5 and 6; 115A.09; 115A.11, Subdivision 1; 115A.19; 115A.20; 115A.21, Subdivisions 1 and 2; 115A.22, Subdivisions 3 and 4; 115A.23; 115A.24; 115A.26; 115A.28, Subdivision 2; 115A.33; 115A.37, Subdivision 2; 115A.54, Subdivision 3; 116.07, Subdivisions 2 and 4; 116.41, Subdivision 2; 400.161; 473.149, Subdivisions 2c and 2e; 473.153, Subdivisions 1, 2 and 6; 473.803, Subdivision 1a; 473.811, Subdivision 5b; and 473.833, Subdivision 2.

Referred to the Committee on Agriculture and Natural Resources.

Ms. Berglin introduced—

S.F. No. 1041: A bill for an act relating to elections; changing certain requirements for voting by absent and disabled voters; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Sections 207.02; and 207.03, Subdivision 1.

Referred to the Committee on Elections and Reapportionment.

Ms. Berglin introduced—

S.F. No. 1042: A bill for an act relating to the city of Minneapolis; requiring the proceeds of the sale of unclaimed stolen property to be placed in the general fund.

Referred to the Committee on Local Government and Urban Affairs.

Mr. Olhoft introduced—

S.F. No. 1043: A bill for an act relating to administrative procedures; providing for the effect on rules of the transfer of powers between agencies; recodifying certain other procedures relating to the transfer of powers between agencies; modifying the powers of the revisor of statutes with respect to drafting; compiling and publishing rules; extending certain statutory definitions of terms to administrative rules; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Sections 3.965, Subdivision 2; 15.0411, Subdivisions 2 and 3; 15.0412, Subdivisions 1, 1a, 2a, 4, 4c, 4d, 4e, 4f, 4g, 4h, 5, 7, 8, 9 and 10; 15.0413; 15.0415; 16.86, Subdivision 2; 62E.10, Subdivision 8; 121.931, Subdivision 8; 121.932, Subdivision 3; 238.09, Subdivision 9; 271.06, Subdivision 7; 299A.03, Subdivision 6; 360.015, Subdivisions 4, 5 and 16; 645.071, Subdivision 1; 645.08; 645.11; 645.12, Subdivision 1; 645.13; 645.14; 645.15; 645.18; 645.19; 645.20; 645.21; 645.23; 645.24; 645.26, Subdivisions 1 and 2; 645.31, Subdivision 1; 645.34; 645.35; 645.36; 645.37; 645.39; 645.40; 645.41; 645.44, Subdivision 1; 645.45; 645.451, Subdivision 1; 645.46; 645.48; 648.31, Subdivision 6; 648.50, Subdivisions 1, 2, 3 and 4, and by adding subdivisions; proposing new law coded in Minnesota Statutes, Chapters 15 and 645; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1980, Sections 15.015 to 15.04; 174.06, Subdivision 6; and 245.04 to 245.07.

Referred to the Committee on General Legislation and Administrative Rules.

Mr. Setzepfandt introduced—

S.F. No. 1044: A bill for an act relating to the city of Echo; authorizing the issuance of bonds for the acquisition and betterment of a city hall, community center, and municipal meeting room.

Referred to the Committee on Local Government and Urban Affairs.

MOTIONS AND RESOLUTIONS - CONTINUED

Mr. Moe, R.D. moved that the Senate do now adjourn until 11:00 a.m., Monday, March 30, 1981. The motion prevailed.

Patrick E. Flahaven, Secretary of the Senate